
 

 

 

 

 

 

Superstition Fire and Medical District 

Board of Directors 
February 18, 2015 

Board Chairman Jeff Cross 
Board Clerk Gene Gehrt 
Board Director Todd House 
Board Director Barbara Cobb 
Board Director Charlie Fox  



Superstition Fire & Medical District  
Governing Board Meeting Agenda 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38.431.02 
Notice is hereby given to the general public that the Superstition Fire & Medical District Governing Board will hold 
a meeting on Wednesday, February 18, 2015. The meeting will be held at the Superstition Fire & Medical 
District’s Administrative Office, located at 565 N. Idaho Road, Apache Junction, Arizona. The meeting will be 
open to the public and will begin at 5:30 p.m. local time. 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call 
The following agenda items are scheduled for discussion at the board meeting.  The Governing Board may or may not 
decide to take action on any or all items. The order of the agenda items may or may not be taken in the order listed. 

1. Review and approval of the January 2015 financial reports and bank reconciliations.  
(BOD #2015-02-01) 

2. Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members. 
(BOD #2015-02-02) 

3. Call to the Public. 
 A.R.S. §38-431.01(H) A public body may make an open call to the public during a public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place, and 

manner restrictions, to all individuals to address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public body. At the conclusion of an 
open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, 
may ask staff to review a matter, or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the public body shall not discuss 
or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

4. Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items as listed below:  
(BOD #2015-02-03) 
a) Board Meeting Minutes from January 21, 2015 – Appendix A 
b) Special Board Meeting Minutes from January 27, 2015 – Appendix B 
c) Annual contract for remaining physicals for sworn personnel that are required for 14/15 – Appendix C 

5. Discussion, review, and possible approval of an annual contract for property and casualty insurance 
services. (BOD #2015-02-04) 

6. Discussion of the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Tax Abstract for Pinal and Maricopa counties, and its impact on 
the development of the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Revenue Budget.  (BOD #2015-02-05) 

7. Discussion and overview of the CMS grant and CoN process. (BOD #2015-02-06) 
8. Chief’s Report (BOD #2015-02-07) 
9. Announcements (BOD #2015-02-n/a) 
10. Adjourn (BOD 2015-02-08) 

 

NOTICE: The governing board may go into executive session for the purpose of obtaining legal advice from the fire district's attorney(s) on any of the above agenda 
items pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3). 
One or more members of the governing board may attend the meeting telephonically. 
Governing Board meeting agenda dated and posted (at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting date and time):  
Posted on February 12, 2015 
At:   1730 hours        
By: Jasmin Jones 
 
The Superstition Fire & Medical District (SFMD) Administrative Office Board Meeting Room is accessible to the 
handicapped.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), those with special needs, such as large-type face 
print or other reasonable accommodations may request those through the SFMD Administration Office (480-982-4440) at 
least twenty-four hours before the board meeting. 

 



Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015  
Agenda Item: 1  
BOD#: 2015-02-01 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Review and approval of the January 2015 financial reports and bank reconciliations.  
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois  
 
Background/Discussion:  
The district’s accounting department staff prepares the monthly financial reports. The district’s annual 
budget, which is adopted by the board each June for the following fiscal year (July 1 – June 30), is 
formatted to mirror the monthly financial statements. The financial reports provide the board with a 
monthly recap of expenditures and revenues, along with year-to-date account balance information.  
 
In compliance with A.R.S. §48-807(O), the following reports have been added to the monthly financial 
statements packet:  

1. Cash Flow – All Governmental Funds. 
The Cash Flow report consists of the combined cash balances of all District Funds. These 
balances include the General (100), Capital Projects (200), Bond Proceeds (300), Special 
Revenue (400), Debt Principal (500), and Debt Interest (600) Funds. The Cash Flow report is 
updated monthly with the actual revenues deposited into and actual expenditures disbursed 
from the district’s cash accounts. It is important to note the revenues and expenditures are 
reported on a Cash Basis. This report is generated to demonstrate that the fire district 
maintains sufficient cash available to satisfy the projected expenditures budgeted over the 
course of the fiscal year.  

2. Fund Account Bank Reconciliations. 
The reconciliation of each of the district’s Fund Cash Accounts (General (100), Capital Projects 
(200), Bond Proceeds (300), Special Revenue (400), Debt Principal (500), and Debt Interest 
(600) Funds) between the Pinal County Treasurer’s monthly bank statement and the District’s 
Fund balance sheet report is provided. To signify board approval of the monthly financial 
statements and bank reconciliations, the Board Chairman is requested to sign the attached 
Letter of Acceptance which will be kept on file at the district.  

 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item:  
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s): 
Letter of Acceptance of the Fire District’s Financial Statements and Bank Reconciliations.  
*Financial Reports and Bank Reconciliations are under separate cover. 
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

“Motion to approve the January 2015 financial reports and bank reconciliations.” 
 

 

Go To Item 2 
 

Go to Agenda 



 
 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Governing Board Acceptance of Fire District’s 
Financial Statements and Bank Reconciliations 

 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §48-807, by the signature(s) below, the Governing Board of the Superstition Fire 
& Medical District attests to the review and approval of the following financial report(s) of the fire 
district for the month of January 2015: 
 

1. Financial Statement 
2. Bank Reconciliations 

a. General (100) Fund 
b. Capital Projects (200) Fund 
c. Bond Proceeds (300) Fund 
d. Special Projects (400) Fund 
e. Debt Principle (500) Fund 
f. Debt Interest (600) Fund 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   _____________________________ 
Jeff Cross, Board Chairman      Date 



Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015  
Agenda Item: 2  
BOD#: 2015-02-02 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for community 
members. 
 
Submitted By: 
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 
 
Background/Discussion:  
This is a recurring monthly item to provide the board with information concerning superior employee 
performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members.  
 
February Service Awards: (presented for 5, 10, 15, 20, and 25 year anniversaries):  
Fire Captain / Paramedic Paul Perkins 25 Years 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Carlos Rivera 15 Years 
Planning & Technology Support Administrator Anna Butel 15 Years 

 
February Service Anniversaries:  
Fleet Supervisor Vaughn Croshaw  6 Years 
Firefighter Anthony Martinez 2 Years 
Firefighter Jackie Anderson 2 Years 
Firefighter David Endres 2 Years 
Firefighter Monte  Fuller 2 Years 
Firefighter Chris Furgeson 2 Years 

 
February Badge Pinning 
Fire Captain Alex Dupuis 

 

Go to Item 3 
 

Go to Agenda 



Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015  
Agenda Item: 3  
BOD#: 2015-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Call to the Public  
 
A.R.S. §38-431.01(H):  
A public body may make an open call to the public during a public meeting, subject to reasonable 
time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to address the public body on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the public body.   
At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to 
criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 
ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.   
However, members of the public body shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during 
an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Background / Discussion:  
Call to the Public is provided so citizens may address the public body (Governing Board) with matters 
concerning the fire district. Arizona public meeting law provides that the public body may discuss, 
consider, or decide only matters listed on the agenda and other matters related thereto. Since the 
public body will generally not know what specific matters may be raised at call to the public, they will 
be unable to act until the matter is placed on a subsequent meeting agenda (at the board’s 
discretion). The board may also direct staff to follow up on the issue with the citizen.  
 
Scheduled: 
None  
 

Go to Item 4 
 

Go to Agenda 



Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015  
Agenda Item: 4  
BOD#: 2015-02-03 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items as listed below:  

a) Board Meeting Minutes from January 21, 2015 – Appendix A 
b) Special Meeting Minutes from January 27, 2015 – Appendix B 
c) Annual contract for remaining physicals for sworn personnel that are required for 14/15 – 

Appendix C 
 
Background/Discussion:  
The consent agenda allows the Board of Directors (BOD) to consider contracts, purchases, and other 
routine administrative matters having authorized funding within the current fiscal year budget as a 
single decision. Items may be withdrawn from the consent agenda and discussed separately upon 
request by any member of the BOD or staff. Information for each consent agenda item and 
corresponding supporting document is within the packet.  
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

“Motion to approve the consent agenda items for February 18, 2015.” 
 

 

Go to Item 5 
 

Go to Appendices 
 

Go to Agenda 



Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015  
Agenda Item: 5  
BOD#: 2015-02-04 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Discussion, review, and possible approval of an annual contract for property and casualty insurance 
services. 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois  
 
Background/Discussion:  
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services is our current broker for our ESIP insurance property damage and liability 
policies.   
 
The quote we received from Cindy Elbert Insurance Services for the period March 1, 2015 – February 28, 2016 
is $96,797.  The increase is due to the following:   
 
   Last Year This Year Change  Coverage 

A. Property: $40,654 $37,382 -3,272   Building, contents  
B. Marine:    10,350    11,963  +1,613    Port. equip / vehicle damage 
C. Excess:    10,777      9,952  -    825   Umbrella liability 
D. GL/PL      6,753      9,296  +2,543   General/Professional liability 
E. Auto    24,983    27,809  +2,826   Vehicle damage 
F. Crime         173         350   +  177    
G. AZ Theft          42           45  +        3  

$93,732 $96,797 $3,065 
 
In total, this represents a 3.27% increase in cost.  However, since last year the District added four (4) 
additional 2014 Ford F150 staff vehicles valued at $164,000, and increased the vehicle improvement covered 
value by $626,511. 
 
Additional Items for Consideration. 
 

1. Terrorism Coverage. 
a. Annual premium = $1,883.00 
b. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 requires insurance companies to offer terrorism 

coverage.   
c. The district can deny this coverage. 

 
2. Optional Increased Cyber Liability Coverage. 

a. Annual premium = $6,148.66 - $8,383.98 ($100K/$500K to $500K/$2.5M limits) 
b. The General Liability coverage (D above) already includes $1M per event/$10M aggregate network 

security and data breach liability coverage 
c. The district can deny this coverage. 

 
Staff recommends the approval of the ESIP insurance for property and vehicle damage, and liability.  Staff also 
recommends the board deny the Optional Terrorism and Increased Cyber Liability coverage. 
 
  

Go to Item 6 
 

Go to Agenda 



Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item:  
Additional annual cost of $3,065.00 
 
Enclosure(s): 
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services Premium Quote 
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

“Motion to accept the property and casualty insurance services proposal from Cindy Elbert 
Insurance Services for coverage by ESIP, to deny the optional terrorism and increased cyber 
liability coverage, and approve the payment of the associated premium of $96,797 to take effect on 
March 1, 2015.” 
 

 

Go to Item 6 
 

Go to Agenda 































































































Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015 
Agenda Item: 6 
BOD#: 2015-02-05 

Agenda Item Title: 
Discussion of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Tax Abstract for Pinal & Maricopa counties, and its impact 
on the development of the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Revenue Budget.
Submitted By: 
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 

Background/Discussion:  
Review of Fiscal Year 2015/ 2016 Tax Abstract and Tax Levy 
The Combined Pinal County & Maricopa County Fire District Levy Limit Worksheet (Tax Abstract) is 
enclosed for reference and review.  The following is a summary of the information: 
1. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 the SFMD Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) for all District

properties in Pinal and Maricopa counties increased 2.0%.  
2. The FY15/16 Combined Pinal & Maricopa County NAV is $348,166,870.

a. Pinal County is $347,927,678; for FY14/15 the NAV was $340,933,417 (up 2.1%).
b. Maricopa County is $239,192; for FY14/15 the NAV was $463,600 (down 48.4%)

3. At the current tax rate of $3.19 / $100 of NAV, the tax levy for the District is $11,111,984.
District revenue items still unknown include the SRP Contribution (taxes paid by SRP on their 
property and assets located within our District) and the Fire Insurance Premium Tax, estimated at 
$278,000 and $100,000, respectively. 

Establish Funding Priorities 
Another important component of this initial planning phase is establishing funding priorities for the 
upcoming year.  As the Board directs Staff in the development of the budget, Staff will provide budget 
costs for the specific programs or items so the financial impact on the item(s) under consideration 
may be evaluated.  The Board may also have new programs they would like Staff to evaluate as the 
FY15/16 budget is developed. 

Items for consideration / prioritization within the FY15/16 budget include, but are not limited to: 
A. Personnel-related: 

a. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System contribution rate increase.
b. Completion of FY14/15 Market Adjustments

i. Third of three adjustments for the Assistant Chief and Battalion Chief ranks.
ii. Paramedic Incentive Adjustment.

c. Civilian Market Analysis and Potential Adjustment(s) as warranted.
d. Earned Leave Buy-Out (accrued vacation time only).

B. Vehicles 
a. 1-2 Staff Vehicles.

C. Property and Facilities 
a. Funds committed to property and facilities – to be determined.
b. Continue search for property for Station 266 (north part of District).

D. Technology. 
a. Software and hardware additions and upgrades.

Go to Item 7 

Go to Agenda 



b. Survivability Initiative (Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs), Public Access
Defibrillator (PAD) Program, Community Education).

c. Training to complete the conversion to the Tyler Integrated Accounting/HRIS software.
E. Grants 

a. Funding for the non-reimbursable costs of the CMS grant.
b. Funding for share related to the purchase of two (2) ambulances – 9.1% share
c. Funding for share related to Regional Blue Card training grant – 9.1% share

i. Partnering with Florence Fire & Medical District
d. Funding for share of the Regional Video conferencing grant – 10% share.

Financial Impact/Budget Line Item:  

Enclosure(s):   
2015 Combined Pinal & Maricopa County Tax Abstract - *To be provided under separate cover 

Recommended Motion: 
 

N/A 

Go to Item 7 

Go to Agenda 



Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015  
Agenda Item: 7 
BOD#: 2015-02-06 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Discussion and overview of the status of the CMS grant and the CoN application process. 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois  
 
Background/Discussion:  
Firefighter/Paramedic Dave Pohlmann will give an update on both the CMS grant and the CoN 
application process. 
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item:  
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s): 
N/A  
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

N/A 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Go to Items 8-10 



Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015 
Agenda Item: 8 
BOD#: 2015-02-07 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Chief’s Report 
 
Background / Discussion:  
This item is for the fire chief to share information with the board of items occurring within, or related 
to, the fire district. Any item shared is for information only. Upon request of the board, any item 
shared during this agenda item may be moved to the agenda for future meetings. Board discussion, 
other than clarifying questions, cannot occur and no action, position, or direction may occur until the 
specific item is placed on the agenda. 
 

• Statistical Reports for January  
 
 
Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015 
Agenda Item: 9 
BOD#: 2015-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Announcements 
 
Background / Discussion:  
The BOD and/or staff may share information at this time. 
 
 
Governing Board Meeting – February 18, 2015 
Agenda Item: 10 
BOD#: 2015-02-08 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Adjournment 
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

“Motion to adjourn the board meeting.” 
 

 
 
 

Go to Agenda  
 

Go to Monthly Reports 



Superstition Fire & Medical District 
January 2015 - Monthly Report 

 

Average Travel Time 

 Metro Urban Suburban Rural 

Travel Time Goal 5:12 5:12 6:30 13:00 

Average Travel Time 
by Population Density 

4:24 4:33 4:38 5:07 

Average Travel Time 
District Wide 

4:32 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Dispatches by Unit 

Unit Dispatches Fiscal YTD 

B261 25 159 

E261 312 1832 

E262 106 613 

L263 329 1878 

L264 100 621 

E265 39 288 

CCU263 51 51 

TRV263 0 28 

U262 0 46 

BR262 0 9 

BR263 6 20 

BR265 0 18 

RH264 3 43 

 

Population Density 
Definitions 

Metropolitan 
An area with a population density of 

3,000 or more people per square mile. 

15% 

Urban 
An area with a population density of 
2,000-2,999 people per square mile. 

8% 

Suburban 
An area with a population density of 
1,000-1,999 people per square mile. 

10% 

Rural 
An area with a population density of 0-

1,000 people per square mile. 

67% 

 

Fire, 10, 1%

Overpressure Rupture, 0, 0%

Rescue & EMS, 
699, 85%

Hazardous Condition, 1, 0%
Service Call, 15, 2%
Good Intent Call, 63, 8%

False Alarm/Call, 11, 1%

Severe Weather, 0, 0%
Special, 12, 2%

Not Recorded, 9, 1%

Incident Type Summary

ALOC, 45, 6%
Cardiac, 57, 8%

Diabetic Problem, 10, 2%

General Medical, 414, 58%OB Related, 2, 0%

Obvious Death, 2, 0%

Other, 16, 2%

Psychiatric, 51, 7%

Respiratory, 39, 6%

Seizure, 8, 1%

Stroke/CVA, 10, 1%
Substance Related, 18, 3%

Trauma, 43, 6%

EMS Incidents: Provider Impression

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

Average EMS Incident Volume by Hour of Day

Average Incidents Per Hour Average Baseline



Superstition Fire & Medical District 
January 2015 - Operational Report 

 

Community Services & Activities 

Description Jan 2015 Fiscal YTD 

Blood Pressure Check Events 12 75 

Car Seats Installed/Placed 10 57 

CCR Demonstrations 0 4 

CCR Demo Students 0 60 

Community Events/Festivals 3 42 

Community PSAs Produced 0 2 

CPR & 1st Aid Classes 1 8 

CPR & 1st Aid Students 6 51 

CPR & AED Classes 2 10 

CPR & AED Students 76 127 

Fire Investigations 2 16 

Fire Station Tours 2 7 

Inspections - Business 8 53 

Inspections - Specialty/Complaint 10 51 

Juvenile Fire Setter Program 0 2 

Neighborhood Canvass - Post-Drowning 0 5 

Neighborhood Canvass - Post-Fire 2 7 

Plan Reviews 8 79 

Safety Classes - Fire & Water 4 15 

School - Fire Drills 5 15 

School - Pub Ed Classes 1 17 

Smoke Alarms Placed 30 209 

 

 

Injury Report 

 Jan 2015 Fiscal YTD 

Injuries 0 11 

Exposures 0 9 

Sharps 0 2 

 

 
 

 

Administrative, 92, 4%
Driver/Operator, 

341, 14%

EMS, 389, 17%

Fire Operations, 971, 42%

Fire Prevention/Public 
Education, 69, 3%

HazMat, 0, 0%

Physical Fitness, 
462, 20%

TRT, 0, 0%

Wildland, 0, 0%

Training Hours Categories

 
Engineer Mark Blackstone 

SFMD’s 2015 Firefighter of the Year 

 
Chief Bourgeois shakes hands with 
SFMD’s newest firefighters as they 

graduate from the Regional Academy 
 

 
Regional Academy Class 2014-2 

Graduation Night 



 
Appendix A 

 
a) Board Meeting Minutes from January 21, 2015 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois  
 
Background / Discussion:  
The board meeting minutes of the previous meeting(s) are provided for the BOD approval. If the BOD 
would like to discuss the minutes, they may be removed from the consent agenda. After approval, 
minutes are signed by the Clerk of the Board and kept as the official public record.  
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item:    
N/A 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of January 21, 2015 board minutes. 
 
Enclosure(s):  
January 21, 2015 Board Meeting Minutes 
 

Go to Appendix B 
 

Go to Agenda 



                                                                                                                               
 

Governing Board Meeting Minutes  
January 21, 2015 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38.431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD A MEETING ON 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 21, 2015.  THE MEETING WAS HELD AT THE SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL 
DISTRICT’S ADMINISTRATION OFFICE, 565 N. IDAHO ROAD, APACHE JUNCTION, ARIZONA.   
THIS MEETING WAS OPEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND BEGAN AT 5:30 P.M. 
 
A. Chairman Cross called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 
B. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director House. 

 
C. Roll Call showed Chairman Jeff Cross, Clerk Gene Gehrt, Director Todd House, Director Charlie Fox, 

and Director Barbara Cobb as present.   

Senior Leadership in attendance: Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois, Assistant Chief Jerome Schirmer, Assistant 
Chief Dave Montgomery, Assistant Chief Mike Farber, Legal Counsel Donna Aversa, and Executive 
Assistant acting as Board Secretary Jasmin Jones were also present for the meeting.   

   
 
Item 1:  Review and approval of the December 2014 financial reports and bank reconciliations.  

(BOD #2015-01-01) 

Motion by Director House to approve the December 2014 financial reports and bank 
reconciliations.  Seconded by Director Fox and Director Cobb.  

Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed. 
 
Item 2:  Recognition of employee performance, achievements and special recognition for community 

members. (BOD #2015-01-02)  
 Chairman Cross read the list of the following January Service Anniversaries 

Fire Engineer John Christensen 26 Years 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Rob Bessee 14 Years 
Fire Engineer / Paramedic Chuck Hanson 12 Years 

 
 Assistant Chief Jerome Schirmer introduced SFMD’s new fire recruits. 

Jason Chapman 
Sean Matuszewski 
Jay Nelson 
Casey Schreiner 
Josiah Stiglitz 
Andrew Tryon 
Colt Weddell 
Travis Yates 

 
  

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
565 North Idaho Road, Apache Junction, AZ 85119 

Phone (480) 982-4440, Fax (480) 982-0183 
www.sfmd.az.gov 

 

  January 21, 2015  Governing Board Meeting Minutes 1 
 



  
 Assistant Chief Jerome Schirmer introduced our new Fire Captains 
 
 
 
 
 
 Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois recognized 2014 Firefighter of the Year   

Engineer / Paramedic Mark Blackstone 
 
 Battalion Chief Rick Ochs recognized crews for their assistance with cardiac arrest calls   

Captain / Paramedic Mark Castaneda 
Engineer / Paramedic Drew Colby 
Firefighter Paul Garcia 
Captain / Paramedic Doug Taylor (not in attendance) 
Firefighter / Paramedic Ken Simkins 
Firefighter / Paramedic Matthew Perez 
Firefighter / Paramedic Lance Frawley (not in attendance) 
Captain / Paramedic Craig Halver (not in attendance) 
Engineer / Paramedic Jim Crowley (not in attendance) 
Firefighter Ryan Philips (not in attendance) 
Firefighter David Endres (not in attendance) 

  
 
Item 3:  Call to the Public. (BOD #2015-01-n/a) 

Constable John Acton briefly spoke stating, he is newly elected and he recently took CPR 
classes from the Constable School, however, what he learned was not as good as the CPR 
class our department teaches.  He looks forward to working with our people any way he can, he 
is friends with Director House and Director Fox. 

Item 4:  Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items listed below:  
(BOD #2015-01-03) 
a) Board Meeting Minutes from December 17, 2014 
b) ImageTrend Elite Product Upgrade Software Licensing Agreement - Amendment 
c) Contract with Arizona Renaissance Limited partners for Fire and Medical Services 

Battalion Chief Rick Ochs stated the Renaissance Manager was at the meeting and he 
approved of the positive changes to the contract. 

Motion by Director House to approve consent agenda items for January 21, 2015. Seconded by 
both Director Cobb and Clerk Gehrt. 

Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed.  

Item 5: Discussion and possible approval for the SFMD’s Financial Statements and Independent 
Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.  As required by Arizona Revised 
Statues §48-253, submitted by Henry & Horne, LLP. (BOD #2015-01-04) 

Assistant Chief Mike Farber introduced Marilyn Mayes from Henry & Horne, LLP to go over the 
district’s audit report. 

Mrs. Mayes went through the SFMD Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s Report for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.  Some of the points she touched on were the following: 

• Financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP). 

Fire Captain Jeff Ehrlich 
Fire Captain Ruben Briones 
Fire Captain Alex Dupuis (not in attendance) 

 

  January 21, 2015  Governing Board Meeting Minutes 2 
 



• No Significant Deficiencies or Material Weaknesses 
• No Instances of material Non-Compliance 
• There were no difficulties encountered when performing the audit or dealing with 

management. 
• Per §ARS 48-253, the district has not incurred any debt or liability in excess of taxes levied 

or to be collected 
• Per §ARS 48-253 the district has not violated registered warrants requirements 
• Starting next year the financial standards will change and the unfunded liability will be 

shown on the financial statements. 

Motion by Clerk Gehrt to approve the fire district’s Financial Statements and Independent 
Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2014, as 
submitted by Marilyn Mayes, CPS, and to direct staff to submit the auditor’s report to Pinal and 
Maricopa County as required by Arizona Revised Status §48-253. Seconded by Director House. 

Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed. 
 

Item 6: Discussion and approval of the Fire Chief’s updated contract. (BOD #2015-01-05) 

 Legal Counsel Donna Aversa stated the contract has updated language regarding the district’s 
name change as well as updated salary information. 

Motion by Director House to approve the employment contract for Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois with 
updated salary information and the district name change and to direct staff to remove typo. 
Seconded by Clerk Gehrt. 

Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed. 
 
Item 7: Presentation, discussion, and possible action regarding out of district responses.  

(BOD# 2015-01-06)  

Assistant Chief Dave Montgomery presented to the board information about out of district 
responses.  The fire district responds on a regular basis outside of its recognized jurisdictional 
boundaries on emergency calls that are not part of our Auto-Aid System.  With few exceptions, 
the district has not historically collected any revenue off of these calls.  Current economic 
conditions as persistently hampering the fire district’s ability to increase revenue.  The real and 
potential losses to our taxpayers are in the form of slower response times, resources obligated 
outside the fire district, and other major compromises to the  Auto-Aid System financially impacts 
the organization and the taxpayers. 

Chairman Cross expressed his appreciation for addressing this issue, educating the businesses 
and citizens that the district is not trying to make money, just recover costs will be beneficial. 

Motion by Director House to move forward with the out of district response research initiative. 
Seconded by both Clerk Gehrt and Director Cobb. 

Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed. 
 

Item 8: Discussion and overview of the CMS grant and the CoN process.  (BOD# 2015-01-07)  

 Firefighter / Paramedic Dave Pohlmann gave a brief update on the CoN and the CMS grant: 

CoN 
 Responded to Phase II 
 Waiting for secondary request or hearing date 
 Moving FAST 

 CMS Grant – CCU 263 

 

  January 21, 2015  Governing Board Meeting Minutes 3 
 



 Captains came off-line on January 5, 2015 
 Crew Outreach  
 Met with Dr. Smith and Mesa Grant Administrator 
 Advanced Practice Providers were assigned 
 All three have extensive backgrounds in Emergency and Community Health 
 Training is complete on January 23, 2015 
 CCU 263 begins 24/7 operation on January 26, 2015 

 
Item 9: Chief’s Report. (BOD# 2015-01-08) 

 Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois reported on the following 

 Lost Dutchman RV Park had their annual brunch and hat contest to raise money for our 
district.  The park has raised money for over 30 years for our district, they have donated 
an estimated $230,000 through the years. 

 20 informational bags were handed out at 400 N. Plaza for our After the Fire Walk 
Program, crews were able to speak to several citizens about the importance of fire safety. 
 

Item 10:  Announcements (BOD# 2015-01-n/a) 

Director House stated he will be attending the Recruit Graduation and he hopes the other board 
members will join him.   
 

Item 11:  Adjourn (BOD# 2015-01-09)  

Motion by Director House at 6:49 p.m. to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Clerk Gehrt. 

Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 
Governing Board Approval: 
 
 
        
Gene Gehrt, Board Clerk  
 
Jasmin Jones  

 

  January 21, 2015  Governing Board Meeting Minutes 4 
 



 
Appendix B 

 
b) Special Board Meeting Minutes from January 27, 2015 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois  
 
Background / Discussion:  
The board meeting minutes of the previous special board meeting(s) are provided for the BOD 
approval. If the BOD would like to discuss the minutes, they may be removed from the consent 
agenda. After approval, minutes are signed by the Clerk of the Board and kept as the official public 
record.  
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item:    
N/A 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of the Special Board Meeting Minutes from January 27, 2015. 
 
Enclosure(s):  
Special Board Meeting Minutes from January 27, 2015 
 

Go to Appendix C 
 

Go to Agenda 



                                                                                                                               
 

Special Governing Board Meeting Minutes  
January 27, 2015 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38.431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD A MEETING ON 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 27, 2015.  THE MEETING WAS HELD AT THE SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL 
DISTRICT’S ADMINISTRATION OFFICE, 565 N. IDAHO ROAD, APACHE JUNCTION, ARIZONA.   
THIS MEETING WAS OPEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND BEGAN AT 4:30 P.M. 
 
A. Chairman Cross called the meeting to order at 4:37 p.m. 

 
B. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Cross. 

 
C. Roll Call showed Chairman Jeff Cross, Clerk Gene Gehrt, Director Todd House, and Director Barbara 

Cobb (telephonically) as present.   
Director Charlie Fox was absent. 

Senior Leadership in attendance: Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois, Assistant Chief Mike Farber, Assistant Chief 
Dave Montgomery, and Account Clerk I acting as Board Secretary Jennifer Burke were also present for 
the meeting.   

Legal Counsel Donna Aversa was absent. 
   
Item 1:  Discussion and possible approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between SFMD, Mesa 

Fire & Medical Department and SW General, Inc. regarding the Regional Emergency Medical 
Transportation Service Agreement. (BOD #2015-01a-01) 

Motion by Director House to approve the Memorandum of Understanding for the revised Regional 
Emergency Medical Transportation Service Agreement (REMTSA), with the effective date of 
November 29, 2014 to match the expiration date of the last extension of the REMTSA and 
authorize the Chairperson to execute the document on behalf of the district.  Seconded by Clerk 
Gehrt.  

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed. (Director Fox absent) 
 
Item 2:  Adjournment. (BOD #2015-01a-02)  
 Motion by Director House to adjourn the meeting at 4:40 p.m. Seconded by Clerk Gehrt. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion passed. (Director Fox absent) 

 
 
Governing Board Approval: 
 
        
Gene Gehrt, Board Clerk  
 
Jasmin Jones  

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
565 North Idaho Road, Apache Junction, AZ 85119 

Phone (480) 982-4440, Fax (480) 982-0183 
www.sfmd.az.gov 

 

  January 27, 2015  Governing Board Meeting Minutes 1 
 



Appendix C 

c) Annual contract for remaining physicals for sworn personnel that are required for 14/15.

Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 

Background / Discussion:  
To ensure the District’s compliance with NFPA 1582 requirements, SFMD’s public safety personnel 
must complete an annual physical.  The district’s original intent was to utilize Banner Health to 
perform these physical, however the district is not contractually obligated to do so.   
As a result of the Health, Safety & Wellness Committee’s efforts with HeartFit for Duty, LLC 
(“HeartFit”) to identify ways to ensure the overall wellness of our public safety personnel, a 
comprehensive physical has been developed that includes several tests not included in the physical 
from Banner Health, and yet will cost the District $5 per physical less that Banner Health’s cost.   
The attached contract with HeartFit is structured to cover the 50 – 55 physicals that still need to be 
performed before the end of FY14/15.  During this period, The district will evaluate HearttFit as a 
potential long-term provider of the required occupational health physicals.   
The district will conduct an extensive survey after the physical are completed to determine if HeartFit 
is best suited to be the district’s on-going provider.  The attached contract locks in a price for all of 
2015 ($575 per physical) but is intended to only cover the 50 – 55 physicals that still need to be 
completed for FY14/15.  However, should some of the physicals not be completed by June 30, 2015, 
the district will still have locked down the cost to complete all 50 – 55 physicals through HeartFit. 

Financial Impact/Budget Line Item:    
FY 14/15 cost $28,750-$31,625 / Account 100-10-61920-15 Medical Exam Services 

Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of the 

Enclosure(s):  
2015 Heartfit for Duty Contract 

Go to Agenda 



HEARTFIT FOR DUTY 
ANNUAL PHYSICAL AGREEMENT 

THIS ANNUAL PHYSICAL AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), is made and entered into this 
18th day of February, 2015, by and between Superstition Fire and Medical District (the 
“District”) and HeartFit for Duty LLC (“HeartFit”).   

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the District operates and manages a fire district; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the District to provide for annual physicals of the 
firefighters in the District, including heart screenings, to ensure that its firefighters stay in good 
health for the safety and benefit of the District, the community, the firefighters and their 
families; and 

WHEREAS, HeartFit specializes in the prevention of heart attacks and strokes in the first 
responder population by focusing on early detection and education of at risk individuals, and 
provides heart screenings, annual physicals, fitness evaluations, and other wellness programs as 
a part of its regular services (the “Services”);  

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the District and HeartFit to enter into this Agreement for 
HeartFit to assist in the provision of annual firefighter medical examinations, including heart 
screenings, for sworn District personnel as required by federal and state law, National Fire 
Service standards and regulations, and/or as deemed necessary by the Chiefs of the District. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants, and 
agreements hereinafter contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Authorization to Provide Services.  District personnel may participate in the annual
firefighter physical examination program provided by HeartFit and any other such
employee health and safety programs HeartFit may have to offer.  Services are to be
provided at 633 E Ray Rd. Ste#101, Gilbert Az. 85296 or such other location as is
reasonably designated by HeartFit and accepted in advance by the District.

2. Charges for Services Rendered. HeartFit will charge the District for the physical
examinations and for other programs and services offered to District personnel
pursuant to this Agreement, and the District agrees to pay such charges in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement. The current rates for such services are set forth on
Exhibit A attached hereto.  Such rates may only be changed at the commencement of a
Renewal Term, as defined in Paragraph 3 below.  HeartFit shall notify the District in

1 



writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of a Renewal Term if the rates 
charged for such services as set forth on Exhibit A are changing.  Specific contracts or 
agreements may be drafted between the District and HeartFit specifying any 
modification to the standard rates and charges reflecting in kind services or other 
specific terms and conditions; provided, however, that any such modifications must be 
in writing and signed by both parties to this Agreement.  

3. Term.  This Agreement will commence on the date first written above, and unless modified
by the mutual written agreement of the parties or terminated earlier pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement, shall continue for one (1) year from the date first written
above (the “Initial Term”).  Unless terminated in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to
the end of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall renew for successive one (1) year terms
(each a “Renewal Term”).  Either party may terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90)
days written notice to the other party. The rights and obligations of Paragraphs 5, 6, 7, 9,
11, 13 and 14 hereof shall remain in effect after termination or expiration of this
Agreement or the relationship specified herein.

4. No Exclusivity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the ability of the District from
agreeing to participate in more specific contracts for services with HeartFit or any other
agency, nor shall this prohibit either party from entering in to any other agreement for
medical services with another jurisdiction, agency or entity which is not a party to the
Agreement.

5. Independent Contractor.  The relationship between the District and HeartFit is that of
independent contractor. This Agreement is not authority for HeartFit to act for the
District as its agent or make commitments for the District. HeartFit agrees and certifies
that it is not an employee of the District and that it is, in fact, an independent business.
HeartFit further agrees that it is responsible for paying all of the appropriate taxes, and
for appropriate insurance, including workers' compensation and general liability
insurance. HeartFit further agrees and certifies that, it is not an employee of the
District, will not represent itself to be an employee of the District, and will support the
District’s efforts to accurately describe this relationship in any further proceedings.  It is
not intended by this Agreement to create, and nothing contained in this Agreement
shall create, any partnership, joint venture or similar arrangement among the parties
hereto.

6. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  No term or provision of the Agreement is intended to, or
shall, create any rights in any person, firm, corporation or other entity not a party
hereto, and no such person or entity shall have any cause of action hereunder.

7. Indemnification.  Each party (as “indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold
harmless the other party (as “indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses,
liability, costs or expenses, including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs (hereinafter collectively referred to as “claims”) arising out of the indemnitor’s

2 



performance of the Services or breach of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the above, 
the indemnitor shall not be required to provide indemnification pursuant to this Section 
7 to the extent that such claims are caused by the gross negligence, willful misconduct, 
or other fault of the indemnitee, its agents, employees, or contractors.   

8. Insurance.  The physicians contracted by HeartFit to provide the Services contemplated
by this Agreement shall provide medical malpractice and Professional Liability insurance
at limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.

9. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the
parties hereto and supersedes any prior written or oral agreements, representations or
warranties between them respecting the subject matter hereof.

10. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by a duly
authorized representative of each of the parties hereto.

11. Severability.  If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement, or the
application thereof to any person, place or circumstance, shall be held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable or void, the remainder of this
Agreement and such term, provision, covenant or condition as applied to other persons,
places and circumstances shall remain in full force and effect.

12. Compliance with Law.  Consultant agrees to abide by all federal, state, and local laws,
ordinances and regulations in carrying out the terms of this Agreement, including
without limitation the Services.

13. Records and Retention.  All records necessary to support approved payments or charges
under Section 2 hereof shall be maintained by HeartFit on a current basis.  All such
records shall be maintained for one (1) year after the completion of services. Upon
reasonable notice, such records shall be available for review by the District.

14. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and all actions
arising hereunder shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Arizona, and jurisdiction
and venue shall be in the state courts located in the State of Arizona, County of
Maricopa.  The parties hereby waive any ability to challenge the aforementioned
governing law, jurisdiction, or venue.

[Signature Page Follows; Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each of the parties hereto, and is effective as of the date first set forth above. 

THE FIRE DISTRICT: 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 

By:  __________________________ 

Name:   

Title:   

HEARTFIT: 

HEARTFIT FOR DUTY, LLC, an 
Arizona limited liability company 

By:  __________________________ 

Name:   

Title:   

4 



Exhibit A 

HeartFit for Duty Charges 

One-Time Setup Charge (payable in full upon execution of Agreement):  = $0.00 

Heart Screenings (per patient): = $0.00 

Annual Physical Charge (per patient): = $575.00 

Fitness Evaluations (per patient):  = $0.00 

Other Charges: = $0.00 

Total Charge per Annual Physical: = $575.00 

Number of Annual Physicals:  50 to 55 

5 


	1 1 2015 February Cover Page
	1 021815_BoardAgenda
	1 February Blurb 1
	1 February Financial Statements and Bank Rec Sig Page
	2 February Blurb 2
	3 February Blurb 3
	4 February Blurb 4
	5 February Blurb 5
	5 FY1516 Cindy Elbert Insurance Quote 5
	6 February Blurb 6
	7 February Blurb 7
	8 February Blurb 8
	2015-01_Monthly Report
	2015-01_Operational Info
	4 CA a_February 4a
	4 CA_a_BODMin_012115
	Governing Board Meeting Minutes
	January 21, 2015

	4 CA b_February 4b
	4 CA b_SpecialBODMin_012715
	Special Governing Board Meeting Minutes
	January 27, 2015

	4 CA c_February 4c
	4 AC c HeartFit Contract 2015c

